
 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 
Post Office Box 42525 
Olympia, Washington 98504-2525 

 
 

AGENDA
PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING

May 8, 2014 – 8:30 A.M.

  

Meeting Location: The Evergreen State College Library, 2700 Evergreen Pkwy NW, Olympia, WA  98505 

Agenda Item Action Page Time 

NOTE: Meeting to be held at The Evergreen State College. Mention you 
are attending the Public Works Board meeting at the parking booth. 
Parking pass @ $2/day can be billed to PWB. 
A) ADMINISTRATION  5 8:30

1. Call to Order   
2. Welcome and Introductions: Mary Margaret Haugen and Lisa Wellman   
3. Approve Agenda: Heather Youckton Action  
4. Meeting Minutes for March 28, 2014: Heather Youckton Action 7 
5. 2014 Meeting Schedule: Heather Youckton Action 11 
6. Executive Director Update: Kendee Yamaguchi verbal  

B) CONTRACTING/FINANCING OPPORTUNITIES  13 8:50
1. Contracts Administration Unit Quarterly Update: Mark Barkley  15 
2. Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan Program: Steve Dunk   

a. DWSRF Loan Restructure Update: Chris McCord   
i. Tahuya River Valley Water District Action 17 

C) POLICY & PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT  19 9:10
1. Budget Development: Cecilia Gardener Action 21 

D) TECHNICAL & IMPACT ASSISTANCE  23 9:05
1. Update on Construction Application Workshops   

E) INFORMATION & OTHER ITEMS  25 
1. Board Committee Updates  27 9:15

a. Executive Committee, Vice Chair Election: Stan Finkelstein Action  
b. Policy & Program Development Committee: Scott Hutsell   
c. Technical Assistance Committee: Jerry Cummins   
d. Communication Committee Charter: Kathryn Gardow   

2. Board Member Updates   9:55
3. Other   

Note:  Anticipated time of Adjournment is 10:00 a.m.    
NEXT BUSINESS MEETING SCHEDULED: June 6, 2014. 
 
Department of Commerce, 1011 Plum Street SE, Olympia, WA 98504-2525.  
Contact the Public Works Board at (360) 725-2744 for further information. 
This publication is available in alternative format upon request. Meetings sponsored by the Public Works Board shall be 
accessible to persons with disabilities. Accommodations may be arranged with 10 days’ notice to the Public Works Board at 
(360) 725-2744. 

 
 

1



2



How to Get Here
Whether you are coming from the north (Seattle,

SeaTac Airport) or south (Portland): Take I-5 to Exit
104, and follow Highway 101 to the third exit (The

Evergreen State College). Travel two miles on the

Evergreen Parkway to the main campus entrance on
your left. Please be sure to stop by the parking

booth for a permit. We recommend that you use

Parking Lot C.

The Evergreen State College
Campus and Vicinity
The Evergreen State College in Olympia is an hour’s

drive from the Seattle-Tacoma (SeaTac) airport. The
area is served by the Capital Aeroporter, and the

Greyhound Bus Company stops in Olympia near the

state capital. Many Washington scenic areas and
urban points of interest are easily accessible from

here.

3



2700 Evergreen Parkw
ay N

W
  

O
lym

pia, W
A

 98505
(360) 867-6000  •  w

w
w

.evergreen.edu

CA
RVIN

G
STU

D
IO

CENTRAL
RECEIVING

Adm
issions

Adm
inistration

CO
M

CRC

Experim
ental Theater

Recital Hall

TRAIL TO
 

O
RGANIC FARM
Sustainable Ag Lab

Farm
house

Gardens

O
rganic
Farm
Trail

Gym
nasium

Pool

Bookstore
Food Services

BUS 
LO

O
P

CAB

RED
SQ

UARE

4



TAB 1 
Board Administration 

5



6



PUBLIC WORKS BOARD MEETING  
March 28, 2014 

Department of Commerce (Olympia, WA) 

Board Members Guests Present: Staff Present: Present: Absent: 
Stan Finkelstein, 
Chair 

JC 
Baldwin Lori Anderson, Public Disclosure Commission Kendee Yamaguchi, 

Executive Director 
Kathryn Gardow, Vice 
Chair   Mark Barkley, Department of Commerce Ann Campbell 

Ted Carlson  Dave Catterson, Association of Washington 
Cities Steve Dunk 

Pam Carter  Bill Clarke, Washington Public Utility District 
Association Dawn Eychaner 

Jerry Cummins  Karen Klocke, Department of Health Chris Gagnon 
Ed Hildreth  Steve Lindstrom Cecilia Gardener 
Scott Hutsell  Chris McCord, Department of Health Isaac Huang 
Diane Pottinger  Stephen Misiurak, City of Gig Harbor Lynn Kohn 
Matt Rasmussen  Jeff Nejedly, Department of Ecology Bruce Lund 
Mark Scott  Cathi Read, Department of Commerce Rodney Orr 
   Jacki Skaught 
   Heather Youckton 
 

ADMINISTRATION 

1) Call to order: Stan Finkelstein called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. 
2) Welcome and Introductions 
3) ACTION: Jerry Cummins moved to approve the agenda as presented. Pam Carter 

seconded.  MOTION APPROVED 8-0 (Carlson, Carter, Cummins, Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, 
Rasmussen, and Scott) 

4) Heather Youckton and Pam Carter requested minor edits to the February 28, 2014, meeting 
minutes. ACTION: Pam Carter moved to approve the February 28, 2014, meeting minutes 
as amended. Ed Hildreth seconded. MOTION APPROVED 8-0 (Carlson, Carter, Cummins, 
Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Rasmussen, and Scott) 

5) Executive Director Update: Kendee Yamaguchi thanked the Board for their commitment and 
involvement through the 2014 legislative session. Kendee Yamaguchi reviewed staff 
program work on the 2016 Public Works Board Application and webinars. The Frequently 
Asked Questions will be posted to the PWB website. Staff will be leading Application 
Workshops starting April 2. Board members are invited to attend.  

  

7



CONTRACTING/FINANCING OPPORTUNITIES 

1) Completion Extension Request: Mark Barkley reviewed the six month extension request for 
the City of Yakima, contract number PC08-951-052 for their Railroad Grad Separations – 
Lincoln Ave/MLK Jr. Blvd project. The project is 75% complete. The client has requested an 
extension from 06/02/14 to 12/31/14. ACTION: Scott Hutsell moved to approve the six 
month extension request for the City of Yakima contract PC08-951-052 as presented. Matt 
Rasmussen seconded the motion. MOTION APPROVED 8-0. (Carlson, Carter, Cummins, 
Gardow, Hildreth, Hutsell, Rasmussen, and Scott) 

2) Liability Insurance Requirements: Mark Barkley provided information regarding non-
municipal insurance coverage. Current 2013 non-municipal contract boilerplates contain 
provisions for insurance and security. Staff will continue looking for options to secure Public 
Works Board contracts.  

3) Drinking Water State Revolving Fund (DWSRF) Loan Program:   
a) Tahuya River Valley Water District: Chris McCord provided an update on the Tahuya 

contract. Department of Health staff and Public Works Board staff are continuing to 
work with Tahuya to identify a possible solution to get Tahuya caught up. Staff 
anticipates a proposal to present to the Board at the May meeting.  

TECHNICAL & IMPACT ASSISTANCE 

1) Technical Assistance Update: Bruce Lund presented a technical assistance service plan to 
the Board. The plan includes a recommendation for 1) Training and Outreach; 2) Managing 
Client Relationships; 3) Being Value-Added Partners and Collaborators; 4) Assisting 
Communities to Develop Sustainable Projects that Meet Public Safety and Health Needs; 
and 5) Helping Communities to Access Resources. The Board discussed the measures and 
provided recommended changes. The Technical Assistance Committee will continue to 
evaluate the measures with staff.  

POLICY & PROGRAM DEVELOPMENT 

1) 2014 Legislative Recap: Cecilia Gardener provided a summary of the legislative session. The 
capital budget, which contained the proviso language, did not pass. Therefore the interest 
rate was not modified in the legislation. The Board will discuss the interest rate at the policy 
retreat. Cecilia Gardener stated that the operating budget did not include any pre-
construction resources for the Public Works Board. The Board will decide on 2015 decision 
packages at the May meeting. The Board will develop the 2015 legislative strategy at the 
Board’s policy retreat. 

2) Public Disclosure Commission Update: Lori Anderson, Public Disclosure Commission, 
provided a review of public disclosure requirements. She provided examples of what should 
be reported. Staff will work with Lori Anderson and the Department of Commerce to 

8



identify the next steps to file with the Public Disclosure Commission. Board, staff, and the 
general public may contact Lori Anderson and other staff at the Public Disclosure 
Commission with any questions at (360) 753-1111.  

3) Retreat Planning: Kendee Yamaguchi provided a retreat planning update. The Executive 
Committee is working with staff to develop the policy retreat agenda. The Governor’s Office 
anticipates filling the Board vacancies prior to the retreat so there may be a full Board by 
May. Board members may contact the committee or staff to add items to the retreat 
agenda.  

4) Board Committee Updates: The Board provided updates for the standing committees. 
a) Executive Committee: Stan Finkelstein stated the committee met via conference 

phone during session. The committee also met with staff to identify policy retreat 
agenda items.  

b) Policy & Program Development Committee: The committee will begin meeting 
following the policy retreat.  

c) Technical Assistance Committee: Jerry Cummins stated the committee will work 
with staff on the technical assistance service plan and will report back to the Board. 
The committee will continue to work with staff on workshops, webinar ideas, and 
IACC. The Board discussed moving the October meeting to Wenatchee during IACC. 
The Board will take action on the remaining meeting dates at the May meeting. 

d) Communication Committee: Kathryn Gardow stated the committee adopted the 
Communications Committee Charter. The charter will be included in the May 
meeting materials for Board review. The committee will continue to work with staff 
on messaging and communication to keep the Board relevant.  

INFORMATION & OTHER ITEMS 

1) Board Member Updates:  

ACTION: Pam Carter moved to adjourn the meeting. Matt Rasmussen seconded the motion. 
MOTION APPROVED.  

Adjourn: 12: 00 p.m. 

9



10



 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 8, 2014 
Board Meeting 

 
Date: April 25, 2014 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Cecilia Gardener, Managing Director 
 
Subject: Board Meeting Schedule Modifications 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Public Works Board (Board) set the 2014 at the November 2013 meeting.  When the Board set the 2014 
calendar, it was agreed that the decision would be reviewed after Session.  During the Budget process for the 
2013-15 biennium, the Legislature did not appropriate capital resources for loans.  This has reduced the 
number of activities requiring Board action.  In addition, the operating resources are also strained during this 
biennium.  The cost of a Board business meeting is approximately $5,000.  This covers the cost of Board 
member travel including per diem and the cost of refreshments.   
 
The Public Works Board (Board) is required to post its annual calendar of meetings with the Code Reviser’s 
Office when meeting schedules are made and/or modified (WAC 399-10-020): 

 Board meetings: 
 (1) The board holds regular meetings on the first Tuesday of each month, except in July. In the month of 
August meetings are held on the first and third Tuesdays. The board may choose to cancel or move 
regular meetings and notice of any changes will be as provided by law. 
 
(2) Notice of the times and places of the regular meetings will be published annually in a January edition of 
the Washington State Register. A copy of the schedule of regular meetings may also be obtained upon 
request from the board. 
 
(3) Special meetings of the board may be called at any time by the chair of the board or by a majority of 
the board members. Notice of such meetings will be as provided by law. 

 
PROPOSED MODIFICATION TO MEETING SCHEDULE: 
 
 Based on budget constraints and a reduced need for action, staff proposes that the current monthly schedule 
of meetings be modified to a schedule of meetings every other month.  We can modify schedules and still be 
in compliance with WAC so long as we post to Code Reviser. Proposed modified schedule:   
 

Month Date Anticipated Action Items 
May 8th Thursday • Board Retreat 

• Budget Development (decision packages) 
• Elect Vice Chair 

June NO MEETING  
July 11th Friday • Rating and Ranking 101 in preparation of August 

funding decisions 
August  8th Friday • Approve 2016 Construction Loan List 
September NO MEETING  
October  2nd Thursday • This is a modification in location and date 

• Board meeting will be at the IACC Conference in 
Wenatchee, Board meeting on the last day of 
conference. 

November  NO MEETING  
December 5th Friday • Possible DWSRF Loan List Approval  

• This is also the month that Committee Days for 
Legislators takes place; exact date not yet posted.  

• Set Calendar for 2015 
 

11



12



TAB 2 
Contract Administration 

13



14



 

 
DATE: April 9, 2014 
 
TO: Public Works Board 
 
FROM: Mark Barkley, CAU Managing Director 
 
SUBJECT: Contract Administrations Unit (CAU) Contract Status Report 
 
 
This memo provides a quarterly status update to the Public Works Board and offers a snapshot of activities 
carried out by CAU.  We hope this gives the Board a better understanding of the work that occurs after contract 
execution. 
 
Number of Contracts Received from PWB from 1/1/2014 – 3/31/2014 
 
PWTF        0 
DWSRF       5 
Other PWB Programs      2 
Total         7 
 
Number of Contracts in Open Status as of 3/31/2014 
 
PWTF     148 
DWSRF    136 
Other PWB Programs     19 
Total      303 
 
Number of Projects Completed 1/1/2014 – 3/31/2014 
 
 
PWTF        2 
DWSRF       5 
Other PWB Programs       1 
Total        8 
 
Dollars distributed to Clients 1/1/2014 – 3/31/2014 
 
 
PWTF    $17,737,763 
DWSRF   $22,785,026 
Other PWB Programs  $     757,027 
Total    $41,279,816 
 
 

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 8, 2014 
Board meeting  

 

15



16



 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 8, 2014 
Board Meeting 

 
Date: April 8, 2014 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Ann Campbell, Program & Policy Development Specialist 
 
Subject: Tahuya River Valley Water District DWSRF Loan #98- 
 
BACKGROUND: 
Tahuya River Valley Water District (TRVWD) is a small water district located southwest of Belfair in Mason County.   
 
TRVWD began being tardy with its loan payments in 2009, but was making them in full plus late fees within 6 months of 
the original due date.  In 2011, the district made a partial payment.  No further payments were received in 2012 or 2013. 
 
In addition to payment issues, TRVWD suffered from management issues including several vacant commissioner 
positions, inadequate administration, and failure to meet the testing and notification duties as required by the Department 
of Health.   
 
On October 29, 2013, staff from the Department of Health (DOH) and the Public Works Board (Board) began meeting in 
person with TRVWD to identify and strategize solutions to the difficulties faced by the district. Staff again met with district 
commissioners and system manager on January 6, 2014. Since these meetings TRVWD has met its operational 
requirements and continues to work with DOH to ensure ongoing compliance.   
 
In addition to meeting DOH operation requirements, TRVWD has made advances to improve its management and 
operations: 

 Peer mentoring from a nearby water system that has recovered from similar issues; 
 One of the commissioners has attended the DOH Small Systems Workshop held in Tumwater on April 23, 2014; 
 Commissioners have assumed control of the district’s billing; 
 Commissioners have established positive working relationships with county officials; 
 Commissioners have established positive working relationships with staff from DOH and the Board;  
 Commissioners have proposed a loan payment plan that will have TRVWD current on its debt service as of 

October 2014, the due date for this year’s loan payment. 
 
TRVWD still has challenges, but is working progressively towards ameliorating the existing situation.  
 
UPDATE: 
In light of the positive steps TRVWD has taken, DOH and Board staff are asking the Board to approve the following: 

Provided that Tahuya River Valley Water District meet its self-identified loan repayment schedule of  
• 2012 Payment of $4,186.33 to be submitted on or before June 2, 2014.  
• 2013 Payment of $4,075.73 to be submitted on or before August 4, 2014. 
• 2014 Payment of $3,965.12 to be submitted on or before October 1, 2014; and 

Provided that TRVWD continues to work with both DOH and the Board to ensure adequate system 
management: 
 

Waive late fees totaling $1,252.60 accrued as of May 2014. 
 
 
 
Should TRVWD fail to meet these self-imposed deadlines, the late fees will be re-imposed and will continue to accrue until 
the District’s account is made current by the payment of all fees, interest, and principal amounts owed. 

17



Tahuya River Valley Water District Administration and Management Improvement Plan 
 
Management Team: Commissioner Anthony Butler 
 Commissioner Lisa Johnson 
 Commissioner Larry Mayfield 
 
Operations: To Be Determined; 
 The former operator, Ken Loomis, tendered his resignation on April 30, 2014. 
 
Advisors: Mason County Commissioner Randy Neatherlin 
 Belfair Water District  
 Dept. of Health Staff (Headquarters & Regional) 
 Public Works Board Staff 
 
 

Issue Resolution Plan Lead Status 

Record Keeping • Identify all homes with system connections 
• Update customer information  
• Computer has been relocated to Commissioner’s 

home 

District Commissioners Ongoing 

Inconsistent billing • Commissioner Johnson has assumed billing 
duties with the updated records 

• Control of PO Box has been transferred to the 
Commissioners 

• Bank card signatures have been updated 

District Commissioners Ongoing 

Water system 
compliance 

• Maintain compliance with state and federal 
requirements. 

• Ongoing testing of water quality 
• Ongoing reporting 

District Commissioners 
w/New System Operator 

Ongoing 

Mentoring/Education • Special meetings held on April 10 and 14 to 
discuss/determine: 
o Open meeting workshop with Mason County 

Commissioner Randy Neatherlin 
o Assign roles/responsibilities for banking, 

postal services, payments, insurance, billing, 
and bookkeeping 

• Work study sessions held on April 17 and 24  
• Continuing education 

 Ongoing 

 
Future goals: 

• Resolve outstanding/ongoing client billing issues  
• Legal issues: personnel, liabilities, etc. 
• Hiring: 

 Water system operator 
 Independent bookkeeper  
The successful candidates will be required to attend commission meetings and will be closely monitored 
by commissioners. 

18



TAB 3 
Policy & Program 

Development 

19



20



 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

May 8, 2014 
Board Meeting 

 
Date: April 25, 2014 
 
To: Public Works Board 
 
From: Cecilia Gardener, Managing Director 
 
Subject: Biennial Budget Development and Timelines 
 
BACKGROUND: 
 
The process for biennial budget development is based on a set schedule developed by Office of Financial 
Management (OFM).  The Board uses Commerce as the administrative arm to submit budget related 
activities.   
 
The Public Works Board (Board) receives biennial authority from the legislature through appropriations from 
the public works assistance account (PWAA), Fund 058, a dedicated account.  Two distinct appropriations are 
made by the legislature in the Operating and Capital Budgets.  The PWAA currently receives revenue from 
loan repayments and 2% of the Real Estate Excise Tax (REET).   
 
Budget requests are based on anticipated resources in the account, assuming that there are no additional 
redirections from the legislature.  The Board will submit two budget requests, one for operating, and one for 
capital. In addition, if the Board so chooses, they may also submit policy requests.   
 
The schedule below identifies the key dates necessary to meet in order to submit budget requests. 
 
March 9, 2014: A list of proposed decision packages are submitted to the Budget Office in Commerce. 
(Commerce is aware the Board will be meeting at the retreat on the due date and have allowed for submittal 
on the 12th after the Board meets and makes decisions)  
 
June 30, 2014: Final Decision Packages submitted to the Budget Office in Commerce to forward to OFM. 
 
September 10, 2014: Final Budget submitted to OFM. 
 
 
STAFF PROPOSED BUDGET 
 
Currently, we anticipate having approximately $204 million available in the PWAA for the 2015-17 Biennium.   
 
Anticipated breakout is as follows: 
 

Available Resources in PWAA for 2015-17 Bien. $204,000,000 Proposed 
Decision Packages 

   
State Match for DWSRF $8,800,000 Automatic 
State Match for CWSRT $15,500,000 Automatic 
Operating 
 
This will require a decision package for 
$750,000 and 3 FTE due to the shortfall 
in operating 

$3,750,000 $3,750,000 

Capital Resources for Loans  $175,000,000 $175,000,000 
 
 
 

 

21



22



TAB 3 
Technical & Impact 

Assistance 

23



24



TAB 5 
Information and 

Other Items 

25



26



 

 
DATE:    January 15, 2014 
 
TO:    Public Works Board 
 
FROM:    Cecilia Gardener, Managing Director  
    Policy and Program Development 
 
SUBJECT:  Public Works Board Standing Committees  
 
BACKGROUND 

Article II of the Public Works Board’s by‐laws lays out the officers and committee of the Board.  There have 
been four standing committees that were established in 2008 to take on subject related issues outside of the 
full Board.  Each committee is empowered to research and develop materials around issues to be presented to 
the Board for review and possible adoption.  Currently, the four standing committees in place are: 
 
1. Executive Committee 
2. Policy and Program Development 

3. Technical Assistance 
4. Communications and Outreach 

 
Each Committee has a charter that establishes the roles and responsibilities of the committee.   
 
It is time to re‐establish committee assignments due to significant turnover in Board membership.  Charters for each 
committee are on the following pages.  The optimal situation is to have full representation from each of the 
jurisdictional/membership group (City, County, and Special Purpose District). We have two vacant member positions at 
this time (General Public and County elected).  The Governor will be filling these positions in the future.   
 
Staff Recommends the Following Committee Structure: (Bold denotes Chair of Committee) 

Executive  Policy  Communications 
Technical 
Assistance 

Board Chair, ex‐officio   Stan Finkelstein  Stan Finkelstein Stan Finkelstein Stan Finkelstein 

Board Vice‐Chair (General 
Public Representative) 

Kathryn Gardow   
Kathryn Gardow, 
Chair 

 

County Representative  Scott Hutsell   Scott Hutsell, Chair    Matt Rasmussen 

City Representative   Jerry Cummins  Ted Carlson  Ed Hildreth  Jerry Cummins, Chair 

Sewer/Water District 
/PUD Representative  

Mark (Bubba) Scott  Pam Carter  Diane Pottinger  Mark (Bubba) Scott 

Private Representative      JC Baldwin   

 
  

 

Washington State 
Public Works Board 

January 31, 2014
Board meeting 

 

27



01/21/2014 Page 2 of 4 

Policy and Program Development (PPD) Committee Charter 
 
A Purpose of the Committee  

 
Primary Functions 
The primary function of the Policy and Program 
Development (PPD) Committee is to: 
 To work with staff to draft proposals 

regarding Public Works Board bylaws, 
policies, procedures, and related issues for 
Public Works Board discussion and 
approval; 

 To work with Department of Commerce, 
Department of Health, and others as 
required to establish clear rights, roles, and 
responsibilities regarding the working 
relationship between the Public Works 
Board and the respective agency. 

 
B Key Activities and Responsibilities 

 
With assistance from staff, the Policy and 
Program Development Committee will: 
 At the Public Works Board’s direction, 

undertake key tasks to be completed in the 
area of Policy and Program Development 
during the year. 

 Create an annual work plan for the 
Committee. 

 Meet as scheduled as a Committee to 
discuss the status of work items, issues 
being faced, and options for addressing 
those issues. 

 Regularly update the Executive Committee 
on the status of the work items being done 
by the Committee. 

 Establish and maintain strong positive 
working relationships with other state and 
federal agencies, associations, and other 
stakeholder groups. 

 Follow-up on Public Works Board Initiatives 
related to policy and program development 
developed at the annual Public Works 
Board policy retreat or other Public Works 
Board meetings. 

 
 

C Committee Membership 
 
Membership 
The Policy and Program Development 
Committee will consist of the following Public 
Works Board members: 

 Scott Hutsell, Committee Chair 
 Ted Carlson 
 Pam Carter 
 Stan Finkelstein, ex-officio 

 
Stakeholders may be invited, at the 
Committee’s discretion, to participate in any 
subcommittees developed as a result of this 
Committee’s work.  
 
Staff to the Committee 
The Policy and Program Development 
Committee will be supported by the following 
staff members: 

 Cecilia Gardener, Committee Lead 
Staff 

 Ann Campbell, PPD Specialist 
 Isaac Huang, Regional Service 

Coordinator 
Other Public Works Board and Department of 
Commerce staff will support the Committee as 
needed. 
 
 

D Committee Meetings 
 
Meeting Schedule and Process 
The Committee will meet monthly or as required 
to keep track of issues and the progress of 
project development. Every effort will be made 
to schedule Committee meetings immediately 
before or after Public Works Board meetings. 
Some Committee meetings may occur via 
conference call or Internet (web-based live 
meetings). 
 
The Committee Chair will facilitate the 
Committee meetings. Decisions will be made 
based on consensus of the Committee.  
 
 
 
 
 

  

28



 

01/21/2014 Page 3 of 4 

Communications Committee Charter 
 

A Primary Functions 
 
The primary function of the Communications 
Committee is to: 
1. Develop Public Works Board (Board) 

messages 
2. Create the means of communicating those 

messages to the Governor, the legislature, 
stakeholders, partners, and clients.  

 
 
B Key Activities and Responsibilities 

 
With assistance from staff, the Communications 
Committee will: 
 Identify reports, documents and other 

communications materials essential for the 
Board to produce throughout the year 

 Prioritize its work and that of the Board’s 
staff in preparing the items identified above 

 Submit ideas on what the material should 
contain and how it is presented 

 Work with staff to prepare the material, 
including editing and providing comments 
on drafts 

 Approve the final versions of the material or 
approve the drafts and recommend 
approval by the Board 

 Develop and improve the Board’s electronic 
communications, including the PWB web 
site and social media outreach efforts. 

 Promote Board members’ outreach efforts.  
 
C Committee Membership 

 
Membership 
The Commutations Committee will consist of 
the following Public Works Board members: 

 Kathryn Gardow, Committee Chair 
 Diane Pottinger 
 JC Baldwin 
 Ed Hildreth 
 Stan Finkelstein, ex-officio 

 
Stakeholders may be invited, at the 
Committee’s discretion, to participate in any 
subcommittees developed as a result of this 
Committee’s work.  
 
Staff to the Committee 
The Communications Committee will be 
supported by the following staff members: 

 Chris Gagnon, Committee Lead Staff 
 Heather Youckton, Board Liaison  

 
Other Public Works Board and Department of 
Commerce staff will support the Committee as 
needed. 
.  

D Committee Meetings 
 
Meeting Schedule and Process 
 The Committee will meet monthly or as 

required to keep track of issues and the 
progress of project development. Every 
effort will be made to schedule committee 
meetings immediately before or after Public 
Works Board meetings. Some committee 
meetings may occur via conference call or 
web-based live meetings. 

 The Committee Chair will facilitate the 
Committee Meetings. Decisions will be 
made based on consensus of the 
committee.  

 Committee meeting agendas will be 
approved in advance by the Committee 
Chair. 

 Staff will take Committee meeting notes at 
each meeting. These notes will be provided 
to the full Board with the Committee’s 
regular monthly update. The monthly update 
will be given by the Committee Chair, with 
support from staff, at each regularly 
scheduled Public Works Board meeting. 

  

29



 

01/21/2014 Page 4 of 4 

Technical Assistance Committee Charter 
 
A Primary Functions 

 
The primary function of the Technical 
Assistance Committee is to: 
 Oversee implementation of the Board’s 

technical assistance programs 
 
B Key Activities and Responsibilities 

 
With assistance from staff, the Communications 
Committee will: 
 Recommend additional technical assistance 

initiatives for the Board to consider pursuing 
 Periodically review technical assistance 

efforts and update and revise as needed 
 Other duties as the Board may define 

 
C Committee Membership 

 
Membership 
The Technical Assistance Committee will 
consist of the following Public Works Board 
members: 

 Jerry Cummins, Committee Chair 
 Matt Rasmussen 
 Mark (Bubba) Scott  
 Stan Finkelstein, ex-officio 

 
Stakeholders may be invited, at the 
Committee’s discretion, to participate in any 
subcommittees developed as a result of this 
Committee’s work.  
 
 
 

 
 
Staff to the Committee 
Technical Assistance Committee will be 
supported by the following staff members: 

 Bruce Lund, Committee Lead Staff 
 Jacki Skaught, Regional Services 

Coordinator 
 

Other Public Works Board and Department of 
Commerce staff will support the Committee as 
needed. 
.  

D Committee Meetings 
 
Meeting Schedule and Process 
 The Committee will meet monthly or as 

required to keep track of issues and the 
progress of project development. Every 
effort will be made to schedule committee 
meetings immediately before or after Public 
Works Board meetings. Some committee 
meetings may occur via conference call or 
web-based live meetings. 

 The Committee Chair will facilitate the 
Committee Meetings. Decisions will be 
made based on consensus of the 
committee.  

 Committee meeting agendas will be 
approved in advance by the Committee 
Chair. 

 Staff will take Committee meeting notes at 
each meeting. These notes will be provided 
to the full Board with the Committee’s 
regular monthly update. The monthly update 
will be given by the Committee Chair, with 
support from staff, at each regularly 
scheduled Public Works Board meeting. 

 

30


	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	Blank Page
	TESCareamap.pdf
	area-map
	evergreen_map_2014-rotated




